
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council‐Chief Elected Officials 

July 22, 2020‐ 4:00 p.m. 

The Miller Center:  301 Grove Street Lynchburg, VA  24501 Room 306 

Agenda 

1. Introductions  

2. Overview of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)  

3. Roles and responsibilities of Chief Elected Officials  

4. CEO chair, vice chair selection 

5. Review and approve minutes from Sept 30, 2019‐Vote required 

6. Review and approve Workforce Development Board Members‐Vote required 

New Members: 
1. Gary Campbell‐CEO, Johnson Health Center 
2. Richard Russo‐Site Director, Abbott Nutrition 
3. Sonya Todd‐Central Sales Specialist, L3Harris Technologies 

 
Existing Board Members Interested in renewing for an additional three‐year term (2020‐2023): 

1. Rev. Dr. William Coleman‐CEO, Lynchburg Community Action 

2. Andrew Crawford, Director Bedford County Department of Social Services 

3. Cheryl Giggetts‐ Treasurer, Innovate Lynchburg Technology Council 

4. Cynthia Hall‐ President, CEO Oak Hall Properties 

5. Kenneth Williams‐Director, Old Dominion Job Corp 

 

7. Central Virginia Workforce Development Board Budget review and approval of new budget‐ 
Vote required 

8. Update on regional workforce system and COVID‐19 response 
9. Overview of existing Local Workforce Development Area plan and input to develop the 2021‐

2025 plan 
 

Agenda Packet Attachments: 

1. LWDA 7 Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 
2. September 2019 Minutes 
3. PY 2020 Budget 
4. PY 2019 Performance 
5. LWDA 7 2016‐2020 Plan Summary 

 

 



 

Serving the City of Lynchburg and Counties of Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford and Campbell 

 

1 
 

 

Central Virginia Workforce Council – Chief Elected Officials 

September 30, 2019 – 4:30 PM 

Bank of the James 12
th

 Floor – Small Conference Room 

Lynchburg, VA 

 

CEOs Present:  Kenneth Campbell, John Sharp, Treney Tweedy 

CEOs Absent:  Bryan Moody, Susan Hogg, 

CVWDB Members Present:  Nat Marshall 

CVWDB Staff Present:  Ben Bowman 

 

1. Welcome: 

Kenneth Campbell, Chair, welcomed and called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Review and Approve New Bylaws: 

Ben Bowman reviewed the new bylaws that were approved by the Central Virginia 

Workforce Development Board on July 25, 2019.  Changes were noted in the following 

areas: 

a. A new name, Central Virginia Workforce Development Board 

b. Change in workforce development board member term of office from 2 years to 3 

years and renewable for additional 3-year terms. 

c. Adding the ability for board members to appoint alternates if appropriate conflict of 

interest and financial disclosure documents are provided by the alternate. 

d. Executive Committee membership was expanded to include two members at-large 

in addition to the chair, vice chair and standing committee chairs. 

e. Added an additional standing committee “Talent Solutions Committee” to focus on 

regional sector strategy/career pathway development. 

f. Full Workforce Development Board meeting frequency was changed from quarterly 

to at least two times annually. 

g. Added additional guidance on conducting board meetings electronically. 

 

Some discussion ensued regarding how electronic meeting participation can occur in the 

localities. Councilman John Sharp moved to approve the bylaw changes with a second by 

Mayor Treney Tweedy.  Chairman Kenneth Campbell called for the vote and it was 

approved unanimously. 

 

3. Approve New Workforce Development Board Members 

Ben Bowman explained the need to add additional board members to ensure that the 

Workforce Development Board meets WIOA certification requirements and discussed the 



 

Serving the City of Lynchburg and Counties of Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford and Campbell 

 

2 
 

expectation that when a board member resigns, the position should be filled within 60 days.  

John Sharp asked about ways to have more potential board members available should 

resignations occur.  Ben suggested that having alternates may help some and requested the 

CEO members to give additional consideration to any potential businesses they would like to 

see represented on the board so that board staff could follow-up.  The following new 

candidates were submitted for review and consideration for approval for 3-year terms with the 

Central Virginia Workforce Development Board: 

a. Loren Metz, Human Resource Manager-Custom Truck/One Source 

b. Dayton Morrell, President- International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers  

c. Robbie Morrison, Associate Extension Agent, Virginia Cooperative Extension, Campbell County     

 

Mayor Treney Tweedy moved for approval of the new board members, receiving a second from John 

Sharp.  Chairman Kenneth Campbell called for the vote and it was approved unanimously. 

 

4. Adjourn: 

There being no further business, Chairman Campbell adjourned the meeting at 5:05 pm.  

 

 

 

 



WIOA Source and Use of Funds
Comparison of Budget to Actual

as of 6/30/20
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual
LINE ITEM  ADMIN DISLOCATED ADULT YOUTH Other WIOA Total 
cash/other income 60,000.00 4,200.00 64,200.00
Econ Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 171,971.00 171,971.00
PY 2018 32,048.61 222,885.23 150,067.28 162,225.03 567,226.15
PY 2019 118,195.00 346,233.00 281,712.00 435,817.00 0.00 1,181,957.00
Transfer (200,000.00) 200,000.00 0.00
Total Funding 150,243.61 369,118.23 631,779.28 658,042.03 176,171.00 1,985,354.15

Workforce Development Board
Salary 12,930.00 23,370.51 25,900.00 35,352.80 48,025.00 41,461.12 97,900.00 78,726.38 184,755.00 178,910.81
Benefits 3,725.00 6,406.43 7,450.00 8,345.85 13,835.00 9,862.23 28,200.00 18,843.40 53,210.00 43,457.91
Audit 3,000.00 4,360.00 3,000.00 4,360.00
Legal 140.00 6,745.00 280.00 520.00 1,060.00 2,000.00 6,745.00
Outreach/awareness 350.00 359.22 700.00 566.43 1,300.00 769.35 2,650.00 1,448.29 5,000.00 3,143.29
Contractual Services 700.00 688.46 1,400.00 2,457.22 2,600.00 3,755.13 5,300.00 6,075.75 10,000.00 12,976.56
Communications Tel/post 280.00 597.58 560.00 612.17 1,040.00 767.55 2,120.00 1,465.43 4,000.00 3,442.73
Ofc & equip lease 870.00 680.13 1,750.00 2,460.34 3,215.00 3,277.34 6,550.00 6,418.40 12,385.00 12,836.21
Ofc supplies 105.00 (3.20) 210.00 95.03 390.00 118.28 800.00 225.27 1,505.00 435.38
Travel/Training 850.00 481.39 1,700.00 1,711.27 3,120.00 2,134.14 6,360.00 3,996.19 12,030.00 8,322.99
Furnishings & computer 280.00 415.92 570.00 1,419.98 1,040.00 1,779.01 2,120.00 3,393.42 4,010.00 7,008.33
Fiscal Agent 70,000.00 70,093.50 0.00 70,000.00 70,093.50
Miscellaneous 280.00 196.54 570.00 592.29 1,040.00 741.14 2,120.00 1,368.01 4,010.00 2,897.98

Total WIB Office 93,510.00 114,391.48 41,090.00 53,613.38 76,125.00 64,665.29 155,180.00 121,960.54 0.00 0.00 365,905.00 354,630.69

Workforce Center
Rent/utilities 1,700.00 1,814.70 5,000.00 4,902.56 21,000.00 12,348.18 27,700.00 19,065.44
Insurance 300.00 450.00 1,000.00 1,750.00 0.00
Equipment 1,317.50 685.27 3,952.50 1,862.32 4,700.00 3,344.96 9,970.00 5,892.55
Communications (Phone) 3,020.00 6,760.58 9,060.00 11,076.47 7,300.00 16,003.54 19,380.00 33,840.59
Supplies 400.00 20.55 600.00 55.50 1,000.00 209.61 2,000.00 285.66
Maintenance 400.00 600.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 0.00
Cleaning 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Facility Total 0.00 0.00 7,137.50 9,281.10 19,662.50 17,896.85 36,000.00 31,906.29 0.00 0.00 62,800.00 59,084.24

Program Operations 85,110.00 87,034.05 309,640.00 269,042.39 315,350.00 243,204.58 710,100.00 599,281.02

0.00

Existing Worker Training 75,000.00 4,645.25 0.00 75,000.00 4,645.25

Direct Program Costs 57,100.00 11,270.36 192,000.00 97,520.59 150,000.00 120,348.60 171,971.00 3,803.30 399,100.00 232,942.85

Grand Total 93,510.00 114,391.48 265,437.50 165,844.14 597,427.50 449,125.12 656,530.00 517,420.01 171,971.00 3,803.30 1,612,905.00 1,250,584.05

Unallocated 56,733.61 103,680.73 34,351.78 1,512.03 4,200.00 200,478.15
Available Funding Remaining Available 35,852.13 Available 203,274.09 Available 182,654.16 Available 140,622.02 172,367.70 Available 562,799.10

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



C:\Users\bbowman\Documents\WDB\CEO\July 2020\FY21 Budget - updated 070920WIOA FundingFY21

WIOA Source and Use of Funds
DRAFT Budget FY21

as of 6/30/20
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Total

LINE ITEM  ADMIN DISLOCATED ADULT YOUTH 
Econ

Equity
Wagner 
Peyser

cash/other income 60,000.00 168,167.70 148,565.00 376,732.70
PY 2018 0.00 0.00
PY 2019 35,852.13 203,274.09 182,654.16 140,622.02 562,402.40
PY2020 115,106.00 282,485.70 334,978.20 418,495.50 1,151,065.40
Transfer (153,000.00) 153,000.00 0.00
Total Funding 150,958.13 332,759.79 670,632.36 619,117.52 168,167.70 148,565.00 2,090,200.50

Workforce Development Board
Salary 22,819.80 78,406.59 53,465.12 32,218.95 9,379.27 6,320.00 202,609.73
Benefits 6,180.20 20,185.19 12,310.70 7,301.74 2,091.73 1,580.00 49,649.56
Audit 4,500.00 4,500.00
Legal 488.36 1,677.95 1,144.19 689.51 4,000.00
Outreach/awareness 244.18 838.97 572.09 344.75 2,000.00
Contractual Services 1,465.07 5,033.85 3,432.56 2,068.52 12,000.00
Communications Tel/post 488.36 1,677.95 1,144.19 689.51 4,000.00
Ofc & equip lease 1,512.08 5,195.35 3,542.69 2,134.88 12,385.00
Ofc supplies 122.09 419.49 286.05 172.38 1,000.00
Travel/Training 1,220.89 4,194.87 2,860.47 1,723.76 10,000.00
Furnishings & computer 366.27 1,258.46 858.14 517.13 3,000.00
Fiscal Agent 70,000.00 0.00 70,000.00
Miscellaneous 489.58 1,682.14 1,147.05 691.23 4,010.00

Total WIB Office 109,896.88 120,570.82 80,763.24 48,552.35 11,471.00 7,900.00 379,154.29

Workforce Center
Rent/utilities 1,388.50 4,165.50 5,823.00 11,377.00
IT Managed Services 867.00 2,601.00 4,820.00 8,288.00
Phone 95.25 285.75 477.00 858.00
Internet 114.25 342.75 573.00 1,030.00
Resource Room Copier 110.25 330.75 552.00 993.00
IT Equip, Softare 300.25 900.75 1,504.00 2,705.00
General Supplies 63.25 189.75 316.00 569.00
Staff Copier 361.00 1,083.00 1,808.00 3,252.00

Facility Total 0.00 3,299.75 9,899.25 15,873.00 0.00 29,072.00

Program Operations 98,504.06 364,204.00 347,713.65 144,696.70 140,665.00 1,095,783.41

Existing Worker Training 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00

Direct Program Costs 57,100.00 192,000.00 150,000.00 12,000.00 411,100.00

Grand Total 109,896.88 329,474.63 646,866.49 562,139.00 168,167.70 148,565.00 1,816,544.70

Unallocated 41,061.25 3,285.16 23,765.87 56,978.52 (0.00) 0.00 125,090.80
Available Funding Remaining Available Available Available Available 0.00



 

 

Program Year Comparison  
PY 18/19(July 2018 – June 2019) & PY19/20(July 2019 – June 2020) 

WIOA Title I Adult/DW/Youth  
 

 

 

   

Enrollments Served Credentials Employed @ Exit

115

169

54

56

80

153

27

45

ADULT/DLW PY 18/19 &19/20 
YTD COMPARISON

PY 18/19 PY 19/20



 

 

 

 

Enrollments Served Credentials Employed @
Exit

60

90

38

24

63

96

8 8

YOUTH PY 18/19 & 19/20 
YTD COMPARISON
PY 18/19 PY 19/20



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  2 

(i) Significant changes in local economic conditions 

A state training center with over 1000 initial employees and two large businesses (over 700 
employees combined), one in printing and one in pharmaceuticals have announced closures by 
the end of 2020. Several small layoffs of 60 or less are also occurring with some service sector 
employers. Additional updates are provided below on labor market and economic conditions 

(ii) Changes in the financing available to support WIOA title I and partner-provided WIOA 
services  

For the first time in the history of the Central Virginia Workforce Development Board, the Board 
secured $100,000 in non-WIOA funds through a Go Virginia grant that provides $70,000.00 to 
upskill existing workers in our region and $23,000.00 to begin building a regional career 
pathway system that includes support for a regional career expo.  The Board is also fortunate to 
have developing relationships with the local governments and schools that will provide braided 
funding for youth career navigators to serve more youth with challenges before they drop out 
of school. 

(iii) Changes to the Local WDB structure  

Subsequent to the 2016 local plan, The Central Virginia Workforce Development Board has 
experienced several significant changes.  First, was a name change in 2018 from “Virginia’s 
Region 2000 Workforce Development Board” to “Central Virginia Workforce Development 
Board”. Along with the Workforce Board name change, the fiscal agent changed names from 
“Virginia’s Region 2000 Local Government Council” to “Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission”.  The CVWDB is also in the process of developing a 501c3 non-profit organization 
and updating bylaws to reflect these changes.  This will position the Board to secure funding 
through private sources in addition to other grant funds. Expected completion late July 2019.   

(iv) The need to revise strategies to meet local performance goals. 

One of the most significant workforce challenges in the Central Virginia Workforce 
Development Area is finding employees who can pass drug screens, can show up to work 
regularly and contribute positively in the workplace (Work Ethic).  The WIOA Title I programs 
will be working with the community college, and other partners to develop a 60-hour career 
readiness training specific to high demand career sectors to improve persistence through 
training and successful employment outcomes. The Board will also be working closely with 
Central Virginia Community Colleges and all school systems with significant input from 
businesses to develop employment sector strategies and career pathways that meet the need 
of our region’s employers. A key strategy under development is a comprehensive Career 
Pathway system that will include print and web-based media to promote high-demand regional 
occupations for all career seekers. 

  



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  3 

Changes in labor market & economic conditions 

2018-Data Sectors in the Central VA (WDA 7) with the highest average wages per worker are  

1. Wholesale Trade ($71,397) 
2. Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services ($70,727) 
3. Utilities ($61,291).  

Regional sectors with the best job growth (or most moderate job losses) over the last 5 years 
are  

1. Accommodation and Food Services (+1,104 jobs) 
2. Health Care and Social Assistance (+1,036) 
3. Other Services (except Public Administration) (+451). 

 
The fastest growing sector in the region is expected to be Health Care and Social Assistance 
with a +1.3% year-over-year rate of growth. The strongest forecast by number of jobs over this 
period is expected for: 

1. Health Care and Social Assistance (+2,409 jobs) 
2. Construction (+493) 
3. Educational Services (+387). 

2016 Data-Sectors in the Region 2000/Central VA (WDA 7) with the highest average wages per 

worker are: 

1. Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services ($68,887), 

2. Management of Companies and Enterprises ($61,606) 

3. Wholesale Trade ($61,541) 

Regional sectors with the best job growth (or most moderate job losses) over the last 5 years 
are: 

1. Accommodation and Food Services (+1,108 jobs) 

2. Health Care and Social Assistance (+708) 

3. Retail Trade (+560) 

The fastest growing sector in the region at the 2016 analysis was expected to be Health Care 
and Social Assistance with a +1.4% year-over-year rate of growth.  

The strongest forecast by number of jobs over this period is expected for: 

1. Health Care and Social Assistance (+2,604 jobs) 

2. Retail Trade (+662) 

3. Construction (+645). 

 



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  4 

Employment Trends: Unemployment decreased to 3.3% from 4.6% over 2 years (2016-18) 

Sept 2018: Total employment for the Central VA (WDA 7) was 108,007 (based on a four-

quarter moving average). Over the year ending 2018Q3, employment increased 1.4% in the 

region. The seasonally adjusted unemployment rate for the Central VA (WDA 7) was 3.3% as of 

December 2018. 

Sept 2016: Total employment for the Central VA (WDA 7) was 107,549. Over the year ending 

2016Q3, employment increased 0.6% in the region. The seasonally adjusted unemployment 

rate for the Central VA (WDA 7) was 4.6% as of September 2016. One year earlier, in 

September 2015, the unemployment rate in the Central VA (WDA 7) was 4.8%. 

(2016 and 2018 Data provided by JobsEQ- Chmura Economics & Analytics) 

  



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  5 

Local Plan Review with Board Committee Input Jan 2019 

The mission reflects the current state, our day-to-day work and purpose of the organization. 
The mission of the Region 2000 Workforce Development Board is: 

We provide the primary connection between our two customers—businesses and 
jobseekers—ensuring demand is met with a highly qualified supply of applicants 

The vision describes our desired future state, how the region would be improved if we are 
successful in achieving our purpose. The vision for the plan is: 

A customer-focused workforce system that supports regional prosperity through efficiently 
developing the talents of individuals to meet the employment needs of our region 

By adopting the following four goals and executing the strategies, the Workforce Development 
Board can lead the regional workforce system to accomplish this task. 

 

Goal 1: Leverage Target Sector-Based Partnerships to Position 
Career Pathways from K-12 Education through Employment 

Strategies: 

• Position industry action teams for workforce system continuous 
improvement 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Identify and recruit workforce "champions" from targeted industries, related programs 
of study, and others as applicable 

• Engage businesses to learn about specific workforce needs 
• Perform "best practices" model research 
• Design and pilot industry-led workforce initiatives 
• Form additional industry action teams 
• Replicate successful pilot models in other targeted industries 

Outcomes: 

• Increased business engagement with formal agreements 
• Employer buy-in on training programs 
• Increased connection of jobseekers to businesses through career pathways 

  



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  6 

2019 Plan input by standing committees for each plan initial goal 

Committee: Operations/Performance/Finance: 

1. Regional Career Expo-April 2019 beginning of career pathway development effort-Need to 
make sure schools have access to resources: 

• Link with Rotary in Lynchburg 

• Exposing teachers to opportunities & resources for career exploration 

• Explore Bedford 1 program-strengthen/expand for student career exploration/tours in 
local business 

Committee: Outreach and Awareness 

1. Id companies that will take high school students -New DOE regulation.  How do we connect 
with business and get buy-in.  Some schools have internship classes already. 

2. More industry sector strategy meetings 

• Follow up print industry 

• Maintain and update workforce needs within industry sectors 

3. Stronger ties to employers & k12 

• Internships/ 

• Tours 

• Work experience 

Committee: Youth: 

 Continue reaching out to counties 

Work with more non-profits for work experience career pathway development 

 

Goal 2: Enrich the Workforce System Through Technologies that 
Streamline Customer Service Experiences 

Strategies: Connect data to inform day-to-day operations 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Form ad-hoc committee of the Board to research and evaluate technology opportunities 
• Discover technology-based solutions to realize opportunities 
• Identify opportunities to improve customer service 
• Perform comparative analysis of opportunities and make recommendations to the 

Board 

Outcomes: 



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  7 

• Improved customer service 
• Greater efficiency in day-to-day processes 
• Customer-centric orientation 
• Increased involvement of all geographies of the region, and less focused on the 

Workforce Center (One-Stop) building. 

2019 Plan input:  

Committee: Operations/Performance/Finance: 

• Board members go through customer experience and provide feedback 

• Instant access to questions via technology using Google Hangouts etc  

• Need digital literacy training for, internet safety, software, basic computer navigation, 

• Develop a library of videos for basic computer knowledge, email set-up, job readiness 

Committee: Outreach and Awareness 

• Easier process for job orders entry into VWC-  
o -Develop outside form (Google doc etc). and staff enter 

• Know where to go library or career center-communicate accessibility 
o More consistent service in the library-clear communication on services available-

what do library staff do- 
o Savannah has provided a drop box of resources for libraries-need to follow-up 

with training for library staff 

• Do we need a board knowledge assessment to better understand the workforce system 
and partners involved? 

Committee: Youth  

• Develop orientation with youth peers serving as the speakers 

• Utilize school video channel capabilities to send message out 

• School IT can set up links on student Chromebooks to connect with youth navigators 

(Job Corp ambassadors or WIOA youth) 

• Promote career pathways at youth sports 

Goal 3: Act as the Organizational Catalyst to the Regional 
Workforce System 

Strategies: 

• Establish baselines, benchmarks, and forecasts for operational and 
skilled-labor gaps in the region 
• Align system partners to capture and respond to the voice of all 

customers and stakeholders 
• Develop professional skills at the service front lines 



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  8 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Establish criteria for targeting specific industries and occupations 
• Identify target industries and occupations 
• Perform a gap analysis of training and education programs 
• Increase engagement of faith-based and community-based organizations in the 

workforce system 
• Identify necessary and available resources needed to act on priorities 
• Develop action plans to close resource gaps 
• Launch “partner” sites across the region to deliver career services 
• Examine the feasibility of forming a 501c3 organization 
• Increased knowledge of system-wide services 
• Improve customer services and satisfaction 

Outcomes: 

• Increased business engagement in the workforce ecosystem 
• Real-time understanding of regional gaps 
• Greater reach of service sites 
• Improved understanding of workforce system among partners 
• Improved customer service 

Committee: Operations/Performance/Finance: 

Conversations with Jerry Falwell Jr.-engage LU and other college’s students as volunteers for 
mentors with youth 

Develop more social media outreach-Instagram and similar media 

Id target location of places youth like to hangout to better identify outreach strategy and 
location 

Put screen saver messages on library computer 

Committee:Outreach and Awareness 

Conduct gap analysis for training on a large scale 

Employers don’t know of training available-educators do not know if employer needs- need 
better communication loop 

Develop work readiness program with employer buy-in 

Continue to id industry to help with workforce needs- so that workforce partners know of 
employer skills/need before they become critical 



Review and update of Central Virginia Workforce Development Area 

Local Labor Market and Local Plan- Approved March 19, 2019 

 

  9 

Goal 4: Develop and Deploy Messaging that Effectively 
Communicates the Workforce System and Services to 
Stakeholders—Employers, Job Seekers, and Service Providers 

Strategies: 

• Add marketing manager to staff 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Describe ROI message for region wide customers 
• Articulate the reimagined One-Stop 
• Develop short and long-term messaging to achieve brand development and brand 

recognition 
• Bridge the knowledge gaps between the employers in the region and the jobseekers 

Outcomes: 

• Improved understanding of workforce system among partners 
• Increased number and higher retention of business customers 
• Greater perception of inclusion of all counties in the region 
• Improved perceptions about the workforce system around low-skilled stigma programs 

2019 Plan input:  

Committee: _Operations/Performance/Finance: 

Business and Community Engagement position has been added to board staff 

Need more employer awareness 

Need youth mentoring prior to work experience 

Set up interviews for work experience youth with employers before consideration 

Advertising on digital signs on highways 

Consider purchasing tv and strategically place for messaging 

 

Committee: Outreach and Awareness 

Website analytics/Facebook to track communication 

Be the route to resources for job seekers and employers and employers 

Increase social media, buy ads, use News & Advance, WSET to reach influencers 



Page 1 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

Amended and Restated Workforce Development 
Area Agreement 

July 2018 
 

 

Central Virginia 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA  
(LWDA 7)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April, 2000 

Revised July 21, 2000 

Revision October, 2015 

Proposed Revision July, 2018 

 

  Council Agreement 



Page 2 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA 

PREAMBLE 

The Central Virginia Region of Lynchburg and the surrounding communities recognize that 
the development of a vibrant, effective workforce is important to the economic 
competitiveness and resiliency of our communities.  We understand that workforce 
development is an educational process occurring at all ages and is lifelong.  We recognize 
that by working together we can build a stronger workforce development program. 

The communities of this region seek to create organizations which will be the focal point 
of the region’s workforce development initiatives.  We look for these organizations to 
both utilize federal Workforce Development funds and also seek other partner 
organizations to develop a well-rounded, successful program to provide training and 
education programs appropriate for all ages and for the skills needed by the community’s 
businesses and industries. 

To implement this effort, we authorize the creation of the  Central Virginia Workforce 
Development Area and the Central Virginia Workforce Development Board in accordance 
with the WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA)(Public Law 113-128), 
hereinafter referred to as the “ACT”, and all federal and state guidelines for the ACT.  It is 
Made and Entered into by and between the County of AMHERST, the County of 
APPOMATTOX, the County of BEDFORD, the County of CAMPBELL and the City of 
LYNCHBURG. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the respective Boards of Supervisors of the Counties of AMHERST, 
APPOMATTOX, BEDFORD and CAMPBELL and the City Council of the City of LYNCHBURG in 
the Commonwealth of Virginia, have adopted resolutions authorizing the execution of this 
Council Agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT FURTHER WITNESSETH:  That for and in consideration 
of the promises and of the mutual benefits to be derived hereunder, that each and all of 
the jurisdictions enumerated immediately above, do hereby reciprocally agree as follows: 

SECTION 1: CREATION OF THE COUNCIL. 

THERE IS HEREBY CREATED, by the undersigned Chief Local Elected Official of the Counties 
and City, the CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA COUNCIL, hereinafter 
referred to as the "COUNCIL ", which shall exist under and be subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Council Agreement, and which shall be deemed to constitute the 



Page 3 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

agreement authorized by Section 15.2-1300 of the Code of Virginia (Repl.  Vol. 1997) as 
amended, for the joint exercise of powers by participating political subdivisions of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. 

The purpose of the COUNCIL shall be to plan, establish, and operate a LOCAL WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT AREA and Workforce Development Services Delivery System according to 
the provisions of the ACT, and the Federal Regulations hereinafter referred to as the 
“Regulations", issued by the U.S. Department of Labor, for the implementation of the ACT 
together with any and all other subsequent and relevant federal and Commonwealth of 
Virginia statutes, policies and interpretations. 

SECTION 2: AREA AND POPULATION TO BE SERVED. 

The area to be served shall be called the CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
AREA, hereinafter referred to as the "WDA'', and shall include the jurisdictions noted in 
this section and consisting of the 2,000 square miles of land in the Counties of Amherst, 
Appomattox, Bedford and Campbell and the City of Lynchburg (Lynchburg Area).  The 
Weldon Cooper Center for Public Services Demographics Research Group population 
estimates published on January 27, 2015 indicates the Lynchburg Area has a population of 
259,487.   

SECTION 3: RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL. 

On behalf of each and all parties hereto, the COUNCIL powers shall include, but not be 
limited to the following: 

A. Providing overall governance for implementing the provisions of the ACT and 
Regulations for the WDA to include creation of, and appointment of all members 
to, the CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD, hereinafter 
referred to as the “BOARD”.   

B.  Approving policies, priorities, goals, and objectives of the BOARD and the 
programs and services to be provided by the BOARD, either directly or by contract 
with political subdivisions or public or private service providers. 

C. The COUNCIL, in partnership with the Board, shall submit to the Governor a 
regional strategic workforce development plan that meets the requirements in 
Section 108 of the ACT. 

D. The COUNCIL shall approve the Board budget annually and receive the BOARD’s 
annual report. 



Page 4 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

E. The COUNCIL shall enter into an agreement with the BOARD that clearly details 
the partnership between the two entities for the governance and oversight of 
activities under the ACT. 

3.01: MEMBERSHIP. 

The voting members of the COUNCIL shall be the Chief Local Elected Official of each of the 
jurisdictions that are party to this agreement, or that official's duly appointed elected 
designee. 

3.02: TERMS OF OFFICE. 

The term of office for each COUNCIL member shall coincide with the term of office for 
which the member was elected to public office in the particular jurisdiction the member 
represents. 

3.03: VOTING RIGHTS. 

Each COUNCIL member shall have one (1) equal vote on all matters before the COUNCIL. 
Voting by proxy shall not be permitted except when the Council member is represented 
by a duly appointed elected designee. 

3.04: MEETINGS. 

The COUNCIL shall hold meetings from time to time as may be required in order to 
conduct the affairs of the COUNCIL.   At least one meeting shall be held each year.  

3.05: BY-LAWS. 

The COUNCIL may adopt by-laws and such other rules as it deems necessary to govern its 
operations. 

SECTION 4: WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD. 

4.01: CREATION of the CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD. 

There is hereby created, the CENTRAL VIRGINIA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD, 
referred to as the ''BOARD”. 

4.02: APPOINTMENT of MEMBERS to the BOARD. 

The COUNCIL, shall appoint the members of the BOARD in accordance with the process 
required by Section 107 of the ACT pertaining to Local Workforce Development Boards 
and related Commonwealth of Virginia Policy as described immediately below.  



Page 5 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

The COUNCIL, acting together, shall appoint representatives from each of the following 
categories: 

A. A majority of the members of each local Board shall be representatives of 
business in the local area, who shall reflect, to the extent possible, 
employment opportunities in the region and who: 

(i) Are owners of businesses, chief executives or operating 
officers of businesses, or other business executives or 
employers with optimum policymaking or  hiring authority; 

(ii) Represent businesses, including small businesses, or 
organizations representing businesses described in this 
clause, that provide employment opportunities that, at a 
minimum, include high-quality, work-relevant training and 
development in in-demand industry sectors or occupations 
in the local area; and 

(iii) Are appointed from among individuals nominated by local 
businesses, business organizations and business trade 
associations; 
 

B. Not fewer than twenty (20) percent of the members of each Board shall be 
representatives of the workforce within the local area, who: 

(i) Shall include representatives of labor organizations (for a 
local area in which employees are representatives by labor 
organizations), who have been nominated by local labor 
federations, or (for a local area in which no employees are 
represented by such organizations) other representatives of 
employees; 

(ii) Shall include a representative who shall be a member of a 
labor organization or a training director, form a joint labor-
management apprenticeship program, and if  no such joint 
program exists in the area, such a representative of an 
apprenticeship program in the area, if such a program exists; 

(iii) May include representatives of community-based 
organizations that have demonstrated experience and 
expertise in addressing the employment needs of individuals 
with barriers to employment, including organizations that 
serve veterans or that provide or support competitive 
integrated employment for individuals with disabilities; and 



Page 6 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

(iv) May include representatives of organizations that have 
demonstrated experience and expertise in addressing the 
employment, training or education needs of eligible youth, 
including representatives of organizations that serve out-of-
school youth; 
 

C. Each local Board shall include representatives of entities administering 
education and training activities in the local area, who: 

(i) Shall include a representative of eligible providers 
administering adult education and literacy activities under 
Title II; 

(ii) Shall include a representative of institutions of higher 
education providing workforce development activities 
(including community colleges); 

(iii) May include representatives of local educational agencies, 
and of community-based organizations with demonstrated 
experience and expertise in addressing the education or 
training needs of individuals with barriers to employment; 

(iv) If there are multiple eligible providers serving the local area 
by administering adult education and literacy activities 
under Title II, or multiple institutions of higher education 
serving the local area by providing workforce development 
activities, each representative on the Board shall be 
appointed from among individuals nominated by local 
providers representing such providers or institutions, 
respectively; 
 

D. Each local Board shall include representatives of governmental and economic 
and community development entities serving the local area who: 

(i) Shall include a representative of economic and community 
development entities; 

(ii) Shall include an appropriate representative from the State 
employment service office under the Wagner-Peyser Act (29 
U.S.C. 720 et seq.), other than section 122 or part C of that 
title (29 U.S.C. 732, 741) serving the local area; 

(iii) May include representatives of agencies or entities 
administering programs serving the local area relating to 



Page 7 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

transportation, housing, and public assistance; and 
(iv) May include representatives of philanthropic organizations 

serving the local area; and 

E. Each local board may include such other individuals or representatives of 
entities as the chief elected official in the local area may determine to be 
appropriate. 

4.03:  PURPOSE AND POWERS. 

The functions and responsibilities of the BOARD shall include, but are not limited to: 

A.  Development of all plans and priorities for service and subsequent 
modifications. 

B.  Development and implementation of policies and operating guidelines as 
required by the Cooperative Agreement by and between the BOARD and the 
COUNCIL for the administration of the workforce development programs 
operated, or proposed, within the WDA. 

C.  Approval of all proposed program designs and delivery systems for the purpose 
of providing workforce development services for the WDA. 

D. Evaluation of the performance of individual services providers pursuant to 
relevant federal and state statutes, regulations and policy interpretations as 
revised or amended. 

E. Development of the vision, goals, objectives, and policies for the regional 
workforce development area.  The vision should be aligned with both the region’s 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy and the Virginia Board of 
Workforce Development’s goals.  The Board shall solicit support and comment 
from the general public in providing a comprehensive plan for workforce 
development programs for this local workforce development area. 

F. Serve as sub recipient of all funds disbursed under the ACT for the local WDA 
and the subsequent disbursement of such funds to designated service providers 
and/or subcontractors in accordance with the approved Workforce Development 
Plan and, pursuant to approved procedures as provided for in the Cooperative 
Agreement by and between the COUNCIL and the BOARD. 

G. Advising the COUNCIL of problems that may arise from time to time that may 
impact policy considerations of the COUNCIL and recommend corrective action. 



Page 8 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

H.  Reporting at least annually to the COUNCIL on the state of the Workforce 
Development Program and the matters related to carrying out the requirements of 
the Workforce Development Plan. 

I. Such other functions as the BOARD may deem appropriate provided such 
functions are allowable under the ACT and Regulations, as amended. 

4.04: NOMINATION PROCESS. 

The Chief Local Elected Officials must contact the appropriate entities in the local area for 
nominations to appoint members and/or to fill vacancies on the local Board from 
business, local educational entities, and labor representatives. Chief Local Elected Officials 
may also design a process for nominations of individuals and other types of 
representation the officials would like to include on the local Board. Vacancies subsequent 
to the establishment of the local Board must be filled in the same manner as the original 
appointments.   
 
Private sector representatives are to be selected from among individuals nominated by 
local business organizations (ex. business trade associations, chamber of commerce, 
economic development agencies). Individual businesses may also nominate themselves or 
provide nominations of other businesses to the Chief Local Elected Officials. Private sector 
representatives can include owners of businesses, chief executives or operating officers of 
businesses, and other business executives with optimum policy making or hiring authority. 
 
Local educational entity representatives must be selected from among individuals 
nominated by regional or local educational agencies, institutions, or organizations 
representing such local educational entities including local school boards, entities 
providing vocational education, entities providing secondary adult education and literacy 
activities, and postsecondary educational institutions (including representatives of 
community colleges, where such entities exist).  Members of the board that represent 
organizations, agencies, or other entities shall be individuals with optimum policymaking 
authority within the organizations, agencies, or entities. The members of the board shall 
represent diverse geographic areas within the local area. 
  
Labor representatives must be selected from among individuals nominated by local labor 
federations (or in a local area in which no employees are represented by such 
organizations, other representatives of employees, such as employee organizations 
and/or the state AFL‐CIO).   
  
For all other members, local chief elected officials should consult with the appropriate 
groups in the local area for possible individuals to serve including:  
 



Page 9 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

• Representatives of community‐based organizations, including organizations 
representing individuals with disabilities and veterans where such organizations 
exist in the area.   

• Representatives of local economic development agencies, including private sector 
economic development entities.  
 

Nomination for membership to the BOARD shall be accomplished in accordance with the 
provisions of the ACT and Regulations, as amended. The nomination process under this 
agreement shall be for the Member Jurisdictions, as defined in Section 2, to seek and 
receive nominations and submit the list of nominees to the COUNCIL. The COUNCIL shall 
review the nominations and any other recommendations from member jurisdictions that 
may be received and make the appointments in accordance with Section 4.02 herein 
above. 

4.05: TERMS OF OFFICE. 

The term of office for BOARD members shall be two (2) years and members may be 
eligible for reappointment. The initial terms of members of the BOARD shall be staggered 
and the manner and method of staggering the term of office shall be set forth in the by-
laws of the BOARD.  Individuals serving on the local Board who subsequently retire or no 
longer hold the position that made them eligible board members may not continue to 
serve on the local Board.  The entity affiliated with the vacating board member may 
nominate a new representative to the local Board.  Vacancies resulting from resignations 
or removal of mandatory members should be filled within ninety (90) days. 

4.06:  VOTING RIGHTS. 

Each BOARD member shall have one (1) equal vote on all matters before the BOARD. 
Voting by proxy shall not be permitted. 

4.07:   OFFICERS. 

A Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected by and from the membership of the BOARD; and, 
shall serve for terms of one (1) year and may be eligible for re-election for one additional 
term of one year. Eligibility for election of both the Chair and Vice Chair shall be limited to 
the private sector business category of BOARD membership as referenced in Section 
4.02(A) of this Agreement.  The Chair serves as the Executive committee chair and selects 
the Chairs for all standing committees and special committees of the BOARD. 

 

 



Page 10 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

4.08:   MEETINGS. 

The BOARD shall hold regular or called meetings at such times, dates, and places as may 
be established in the by-laws of the BOARD. 

4.09:  STANDING COMMITTEES. 

A. IN GENERAL.—the BOARD may designate and direct the activities of standing 
committees to provide information and to assist the local board in carrying out 
activities under this section. Such standing committees shall be chaired by a 
member of the local board, may include other members of the local board, and 
shall include other individuals appointed by the local board who are not members 
of the local board and who the local board determines have appropriate 
experience and expertise. At a minimum, the local board may designate each of 
the following:  

(i) A standing committee to provide information and assist with operational 
and other issues relating to the one-stop delivery system, which may 
include as members representatives of the one-stop partners.  

(ii) A standing committee to provide information and to assist with 
planning, operational, and other issues relating to the provision of services 
to youth, which shall include community-based organizations with a 
demonstrated record of success in serving eligible youth. 

(iii) A standing committee to provide information and to assist with 
operational and other issues relating to the provision of services to 
individuals with disabilities, including issues relating to compliance with 
section 188, if applicable, and applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) regarding providing 
programmatic and physical access to the services, programs, and activities 
of the one-stop delivery system, as well as appropriate training for staff on 
providing supports for or accommodations to, and finding employment 
opportunities for, individuals with disabilities.  

B. ADDITIONAL COMMITTEES.—The Board may designate standing committees in 
addition to the standing committees specified in subparagraph (A).  

4.10: BY-LAWS. 

The Board shall adopt by-laws and such other rules or operational procedures as it deems 
necessary to govern its operations. 



Page 11 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

SECTION 5: ADMINISTRATION. 

5.01:  GRANT RECIPIENT. 

The City of Lynchburg has been designated by the COUNCIL to be the grant recipient for 
the Central Virginia Workforce Development Area COUNCIL, and is responsible for 
ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of the WDA grant. Therefore, the City 
shall have the ability, for cause, to terminate the appointment of the fiscal agent selected 
if the City, in its sole discretion, determines there is good cause to do so by giving written 
notice of termination and specifying the cause for the termination and the effective date 
thereof.  In the event the City terminates the appointment of the fiscal agent as provided 
herein, the fiscal agent will be paid for the reasonable services provided and the allowable 
expenses incurred by the fiscal agent prior to the termination of the appointment.  If the 
City terminates the appointment of the fiscal agent the BOARD with the advice and 
consent of the COUNCIL shall appoint a new fiscal agent. 

5.02: FISCAL AGENT. 

In order to facilitate and expedite the process of implementing the workforce 
development system in Central Virginia, the COUNCIL has determined it to be appropriate 
to make the initial appointment of the Fiscal Agent for both the COUNCIL and the BOARD. 
Future appointment of the Fiscal Agent shall be by the BOARD with the advice and 
consent of the COUNCIL.  Pursuant to the ACT, this Agreement, and the Cooperative 
Agreement between the COUNCIL, and the BOARD, the Fiscal Agent shall be the 
responsible to the BOARD for management and control. The Fiscal Agent shall provide 
administrative and staff support to both the COUNCIL and the BOARD performing those 
duties and responsibilities as may be required to carry out the requirements of the ACT as 
prescribed by the BOARD and approved by the COUNCIL.  Additionally, the ACT prohibits 
the Fiscal Agent from providing direct services. 

Accordingly, the COUNCIL does hereby appoint the Central Virginia Planning District 
Commission as the Fiscal Agent for the WDA. 

5.03: DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIESOF THE FISCAL AGENT. 

The FISCAL AGENT shall have the following duties and responsibilities and such other 
duties as may be assigned by the COUNCIL initially and the BOARD subsequently: 

A. Prepare the Workforce Development plans as directed by the BOARD; 

B. Develop a program budget for submission to the BOARD prepared in accordance 
with federal and state guidelines and provisions of the ACT; 



Page 12 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

C. Develop an Administrative Budget for submission to the BOARD for the purpose 
of carrying out the responsibilities as may be assigned by the BOARD; 

D. Provide professional, technical, and clerical support to the COUNCIL under the 
direction of the BOARD on all matters relating to planning, operation, monitoring, 
oversight, and evaluation of Workforce Development programs and activities in 
and for the WDA; 

E. Develop and carry out monitoring procedures necessary to meet the 
requirements of the Workforce Development Plan and the ACT; 

F. Provide for the operation of all programs and activities which are carried out for 
the COUNCIL under the authority of the BOARD; and 

G. To perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to time. 

SECTION 6: SPECIAL COMMITEES. 

The BOARD and the COUNCIL, jointly or separately, shall from time to time establish such 
special committees as deemed necessary to effectively plan for and efficiently respond to 
the workforce needs of the WDA. 

SECTION 7: RESOLUTION OF CONFLICT. 

In the event there is an unresolved dispute between the BOARD and the COUNCIL, the 
Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia shall exercise the authority vested in the state 
governor by the ACT and Regulations, as amended. 

SECTION 8: LIABILITY. 

The COUNCIL as a unit and distinguished from the sum or any number of its individual 
members shall indemnify, and hold harmless, the individual members of the BOARD and 
COUNCIL from the restitution of any funds required by the misapplication, erroneous 
expenditure or other action by the BOARD or COUNCIL which results in a claim against any 
individual member or combination of members of the COUNCIL or the BOARD to the 
extent allowed by law; this duty to indemnify is subject to all immunities that inure to any 
individual COUNCIL  member as an officer, agent or employee of any political subdivision 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia and to the immunities that inure to the benefit of any 
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia who is a party hereto or a 
beneficiary hereof, its officers, agents and employees to include sovereign immunity. 

 



Page 13 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

8.01:  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

The extent of liability of any single jurisdiction in this COUNCIL, for any of the funds 
appropriated to the WDA, shall be limited to the prorated share of the total funds 
allocated the particular jurisdiction during the particular fiscal year in which an issue of 
liability may arise. 

8.02:  INSURANCE REQUIREMENT. 

The Fiscal Agent shall procure and maintain appropriate Public Liability and Errors and 
Omissions Insurance policies sufficient to protect the COUNCIL from potential errors and 
omissions in the ordinary administration and use of these particular public funds and 
provide proof thereof to the COUNCIL prior to entering into its duties as Fiscal Agent. 

SECTION 9: DURATION. 

This Council Agreement shall be terminated upon the repeal of the ACT and other related 
legislation regarding Workforce Development or upon mutual consent of at least two-
thirds (2/3) of the members of the COUNCIL. 

SECTION 10: MEMBERSHIP ADDITIONS AND WITHDRAWALS. 

10.01: ADDITIONS. 

Any local jurisdiction which is not a party to this Council Agreement on the effective date 
thereof may thereafter join the COUNCIL provided that such local jurisdiction is made a 
part of a Local Workforce Development Area designated by the Governor of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia in accordance with the provisions of the ACT and Regulations, 
as amended; and that, that jurisdiction adopts and executes this Council Agreement. 

10.02: WITHDRAWALS. 

Any party to this Council Agreement shall have the right to withdraw at any time after 
written notification of at least ninety (90) days to the COUNCIL of the party's intention to 
withdraw from the Council Agreement.  In the event that any locality that is a party to this 
agreement exercises its right to withdrawal then the term of any BOARD member 
appointed by such locality as well as the term of the Chief Elected Official representing the 
locality on the COUNCIL shall end on the date of the withdrawal. 

10.03: DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION. 

Upon termination of this agreement any property owned by the Council or the Fiscal 
Agent shall be distributed to the local jurisdictions on a proportionate basis equal to the 



Page 14 of 14 
Central Virginia Workforce Development Area Council Agreement 

 

amount of funding through grant receipts or otherwise during the period of time when 
the agreement was in effect. 

SECTION 11: AMENDMENTS. 

This Council Agreement may be amended only by concurring resolutions by the governing 
bodies of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of this Council Agreement. 

SECTION 12: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This Council Agreement shall become effective on the date that two-thirds (2/3) of the 
members agree. 

 

 

 


	CVWDC Agenda 7-22-20
	WF Council Meeting Minutes 9-30-19
	Copy of Finance Committe 06302020 updated 070920
	FY21 Budget - updated 070920
	PY 19.20 YTD comparison
	2019 Local Plan Review and Additional Input
	2018 WDB Council Agreement Revised, Final

